Questions Emailed prior to pre-bid meeting

Also, what is the deadline for submitting questions to this RFP? Submit questions via email to
Alison.kirk@state.de.us no later than 4:30pm EST Thursday July 21%. All questions and answers will be
posted online at dshs.delaware.gov/information/rfp.shtml on Thursday July 22nd. Please see page 19 of RFP
for format on how to submit a question.

Please tell me who the two PR firms are who were awarded these contracts previously? Aloysius Butler &
Clark, Deardorff Associates

What are some of the key points you would like to stress about some of your new initiatives? All our
campaigns are to change driver behavior. They need to be fresh, powerful and impactful to get the point
across in a few words because the majority of our target audience for all campaigns is males 18-34. We are
trying to incorporate more web based marketing since that is where the target audience tends to get the
majority of their information and spends their time.

What efforts have been taken internally, if any, toward PR efforts? Internally we do earned media which
includes press releases, press events, website updates, and social media (facebook & twitter)

What background would you like your representing agency to have? (particular channels, niche markets,
experience with different clients types- government, commercial, nonprofit)? This information is in the RFP
posted on our website http://bidcondocs.delaware.gov/SHS/SHS 11006PubRel RFP.pdf We would like
agencies to have experience working with state agencies, traffic safety programs, social media, and of
course experience with all paid media outlets. We would also like the agency to collaborate or work well
with other OHS partners to reach target audiences.

Is there a time frame for the contracted relationship? This is also in the RFP. The contract shall be for one
year REIMBURSABLE contract period from October 1, 2011 to September 30, 2012. Each contract may be
renewed for up to six years in 1 or 2 year periods.

What is your ultimate goal (the ideal outcome) for your next PR firm.? Firm that has some new fresh ideas
that relate to target audience to change driver behaviors, can continue to build upon our brand “Arrive Alive
DE”, firm that is flexible and willing to work with OHS partners on new ideas or projects.

| see the notation precluding the use of subcontractors outside of the United States, but are their similar
restrictions for using vendors from other states.

Any individual, business, organization, corporation, consortium, partnership, joint venture, or any
other entity including subcontractors currently debarred or suspended is ineligible to bid. Any entity
ineligible to conduct business in the State of Delaware for any reason is ineligible to respond to the RFP.

In the RFP pages 17-18 covers Sub-Contracting. Sub contracting is allowed as long as there is a
Prime Vendor who assumes responsibility for work and payment to subcontractors. Sub contractors must
be approved by State of Delaware and are located within the USA.

Request List of Items, Schedule of Requirements, Scope of Work, Terms of Reference, Bill of Materials
required.
e Soft Copy of the Tender Document through email.
Names of countries that will be eligible to participate in this tender.
Information about the Tendering Procedure and Guidelines
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Estimated Budget for this Purchase
Any Extension of Bidding Deadline?
Any Addendum or Pre Bid meeting Minutes?

There are no documents to purchase.

The request for proposal is available for review on the internet at:

http://bids.delaware.gov/bids detail.asp?i=599&DOT=N

We do not maintain bidder’s lists in our agency.

On page 31 there is a prohibition against activity on the contract being executed in an off shore

facility, either by a subcontracted firm or a foreign office or division of the vendor. The vendor must
attest to the fact that no activity will take place outside of the United States in its transmittal letter.
Failure to adhere to this requirement is cause for elimination from future consideration.

There is a mandatory pre-bid meeting that a representative of the firm must attend. If your firm has

offices in the United States and agrees to abide by item three above, your firm is welcome to compete
on this request for proposal.

Questions and answers from Pre-Bid Meeting July 19, 2011

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

You mentioned last year was a banner year in success for reducing fatalities. What do you think you
did differently compare to other years that made it a banner year? We developed new partnerships
in the community with Racing Limos of Dover, Alliance Sport Marketing, and did some new things
such as movie theatre advertising. We also very targeted with our enforcement dollars and how we
identify what towns and cities where we should be focusing our enforcement based on crash data.

Who signs/enter into media contract with buyers? Agency or OHS? The agency enters into the paid
media contract on behalf of OHS and then submits an invoice to OHS for reimbursement. OHS/State
of Delaware is required to pay invoices within 30 days of receipt. However, there are times where
the state has a fiscal shut down in July where payment can be delayed.

The RFP states if we think any of our proposals, such as our spec creative or sample creative is
proprietary, we have to submit it in a separate sealed envelope marked proprietary. However in the
RFP you require a full proposal be submitted all together in one package. How can we submit
separate information packets and it still be considered a full proposal? Yes, we see the confusion
here. The RFP propriety language was set by Government Support Services. If you follow the
instructions in the RFP on Page 5, under Task 5, Section F, and submit the sealed envelope with your
proposal it will be considered a full proposal. Once the proposal is accepted by OHS, it becomes
public information and can be released under FOIA, which is why we ask you to submit them in
separate envelope with a cover letter from your legal council so those items are not included in any
future FOIA requests.

When will the list of attendees be posted? They will be posted on Government Support Services
website within 24-48 hours.

Are current contract rates and terms available and are they a matter of public record? If the
information was in proposal and marked proprietary then it is not public record. A formal request
can be submitted to Stephanie.Young@state.de.us
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6) Do you have a preferred number of agencies you are looking to work with? No we don’t. Because
we are a small staff we will need one main agency, but have left the option open to work/partner
with smaller specialized agencies if we find the need.

7) Why are you going out to bid before the end of the contract? Our funding comes from NHTSA and
right now, as you have probably read in the news, there is a reauthorization going on in Congress,
which may include new grant sources. So we saw the opportunity to take advantage of the timing of
the reauthorization and see what new ideas or projects may be available to benefit us. We also
want to stress that there will be/may be overlap of campaign work during this time period and we
want to ensure continuity during the transition and campaigns.

8) When will you award the contract? We have till November 17" but our fiscal year begins October
1**. We would like to have everything in place before October 1%

9) What percentage of target group/audience is represented in fatal crashes? The majority of the
target audience for our campaigns is Males 18-34, though it may vary from campaign to campaign,
but overall you can expect to have a message targeted to this group. Male drivers 18-34 make up
28% of licensed drivers in Delaware in 2010. Of the 103 persons killed last year in traffic crashes,
64% were males and of those males 35% were 18-34. You can find out more information in DSP
Traffic Reports http://www.dsp.delaware.gov/reports.shtml

10) So are motorcycles your greatest challenge? Motorcycles have been a challenge for us this year
because there isn’t a trend you can explain from year to year. This year we have 12 motorcycle
fatals to date compared to 6 this time last year. Our top priorities are DUI, seat belt use, and
reducing aggressive driving related crashes/fatals.

11) Do you have any data to show traffic behavior issues with Hispanics or African Americans? No
because the reporting form law enforcement uses does not have a box to check for race so we can
not track it. We are working with a Hispanic committee through our Corporate Outreach
Coordinator to better grasp the Spanish messages we should be putting out to the community.

12) Can you provide details on past historical crash data? This information can be found on DSP website
in their Traffic Statistical Reports. http://www.dsp.delaware.gov/reports.shtml

13) Have you done any type of survey to find out what type of media (billboards, radio, etc.) have
proven to be effective? NHTSA has required we conduct a Driver Behavior Survey in July which can
be found in our Annual Highway Safety Report on page 47
http://www.ohs.delaware.gov/services/reports.shtml

14) Are there any states you feel are doing a good job or that stand out to you in any way? Texas has a
very interesting and interactive Facebook page called Santa in Texas which focuses on
DUI/Designated Driver messaging.

15) Would you consider sharing advertising with other states? No, we prefer our campaign messages
and materials to be Delaware specific.

16) Do you have any data that relates to crash specifics such as temperatures, road rage, driver
emotions, traffic congestion, etc? Our data is evaluated by month, day of week, time of day, and
contributing causes such as DUI, speed, running traffic lights, stop signs, etc. We partner with
agencies such as DelDOT and Delaware State Police on our Highway Safety Plan
http://www.ohs.delaware.gov/services/reports.shtml to determine if the issue warrants a
engineering or enforcement solution.
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17) Does your Annual Report have statistics for motorcycle last year vs. this year? Did your motorcycle
budget increase or decrease this year? Yes our annual report does have that information and so
does the DSP Traffic Statistical Reports http://www.dsp.delaware.gov/reports.shtml. This year our
funding came in late for motorcycle and was not in place when were planning the campaign so we
could not execute a motorcycle focused message in time to correlate with the increased motorcycle
crashes and fatalities.

18) What kind of overlap can we expect during transition such as campaigns? Please look over this
year’s campaign calendar to get an idea of when we run our campaigns. We do suggest getting
started early, roughly 2-3 months before the campaign launch date for planning.
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Delaware Office of Highway Safety Comprehensive Campaign Schedule for 2011

Campaigns:

January

February

March

April

June

July

August September

October

November

December

Occupant Protection:

1. Click It or Ticket Campaign

2. Tween Seat Belt Safety Campaign

3. Child Passenger Safety Awareness Week

May

Impaired Driving:

1. Checkpoint Strikeforce Campaign

2. Underage Drnking Campaign

3. Designated Driver Campaign

4. Safe Family Holiday Campaign

LR,
ON HOLD

Aggressive Driving:

1. Aggressive Driving Campaign

Pedestrian Safety:

1. Walk Smart Pedestrian Safety Campaign

Motorcycle Safety:

1. Ride Smart Motorcycle Safety Campaign - Motorists

2. Ride Smart Motorcycle Safety Campaign - Motorcyclists

Bicycle Safety:

1. Bike Smart Bicycle Safety Campaign

ON HOLD

Distracted Driving:

1. Distracted Driving Social Norming Campaign

Other:

1. Graduated Drivers Licensing Program

NDTSW




Questions emailed after pre-bid meeting

Question 1
Section II:A
2" Paragraph
Page 2
Text: “Since 2005 the Office of Highway Safety has contracted with two different
PR/Communications firms...”
Question: How long did you work with the first firm? Almost 5 years
Were you happy with the relationship? yes
Were you happy with their work? yes
How long did you work with the second firm? 2 years
Were you happy with the relationship? Yes, but with reauthorization of our federal
dollars coming within the next year and desire for new direction we felt that the

time was appropriate to rebid this contract.

Question 2
Section II:D
1% Paragraph
Page 4

Text:

Question:

Question 3
Section II:D
10" Paragraph
Page 5

Text:
Question:

Were you happy with their work? yes

Are you looking to contract with a new agency, or will you consider contracting
again with one of the previous agencies? We are looking for an agency who’s work
meets our needs and expectations. Should one of the previous contractors submit a
proposal it will be reviewed along with all other agency proposals. The agency
proposal that best meets our needs will be awarded the contract.

“Task 1 - Upon completion of all previous tasks, provide a draft work plan to meet
OHS’s communication and public information needs...”

Should this draft work plan include work plans for all eight (8) OHS programs listed
in the RFP? OR, do you just want us to provide an overall communications plan for
OHS? This should be an overall communications plan that highlights any new or
unique ideas OHS may consider to enhance our outreach efforts. Task 2 indicates
the respondent should pick one campaign for a sample plan.

“Task 5 — Assist OHS in preparing documents for its Highway Safety Conference...”

Is the chosen vendor responsible for designing the booklets and save the date
materials? If so, are there other materials that should be accounted for in the rfp
budget for this conference? And, which program budget is the conference budget
being drawn from? We host the Highway Safety Conference every other year. This
year due to budget constraints, we are designing and printing booklets in house.
We maintain separate budget lines for these types of special projects that arise in a
given year that may not be outlined in this RFP. This is just to inform you that
special projects do come up from time to time and if we have the budget we will ask
the agency to assist us with some of the items.



Question 4

Does OHS already have a database of email addresses for the email blasts? Yes we
have emails.

Section II:F; 1% Paragraph; Page 5

Text:

Question:

Question 5

Proposals must be submitted with labeled tabs or labeled colored divider
sheets......It is recommended that bidders not use 3-ring binders...

What is your preferred format if binders are not recommended? This will be a very
thick proposal so stapling may be an issue as well. It doesn’t say you can’t use 3 ring
binders. You may use any type of binding you wish. Just ensure that the pages do
not come undone and fall out of the proposal. A comb binding or spiral binding is
what we suggest.

Section I1:G; 4™ Paragraph; Page 6

Text:
Question:

Question 6

TAB 2 — Include a general narrative description of the proposed effort.

Under this Tab (Description of Proposed Effort to be Undertaken), are we to create a
work plan for all eight (8) programs incorporating narrative? Or, are we to provide a
detailed overview of how we plan on developing the programs including some
marketing strategies that we might recommend if we were chosen? Provide a
detailed overview of how your agency plans on developing the program from
beginning to end.

Section II:G; 5" Paragraph; Page 6

Text:

Question:

Question 7

TAB 2 — Additionally, describe specifically how the objectives listed in Proposal
Information (pg 8-9) will be achieved...

Where are the objectives? | don’t see them on pages 8-9 The objectives are outlines
on page 2. Sorry for the discrepancy.

Section I1:G; 9™ Paragraph; Page 7

Text:

Question:

TAB 4 — The estimated cost proposal should include breakdowns of cost in the
following broad categories: Account Management, Public Relations, ...

At the pre-bid meeting it was stated that the chosen agency would not be
responsible for any news releases or media advisories etc, yet “Public Relations” is a
category included in the cost proposal. What services are you including as “Public
Relations” that we are responsible for? See some examples of Public Relations
opportunities below: 1. coordinating and building partnerships through local
grassroots outreach/partnership projects. 2. Creating public service
announcements and disseminating to media. 3. Identifying additional opportunities
to expand our message in non-traditional media outlets.



Question 8
Please provide the following information re: contract and invoicing terms with the current vendor:

e Vendor Hourly Rates - for manpower; all functions

e Vendor Commission — for media placement, offline media

e Vendor Commission - for media placement, online media

e Vendor Commission - for out—of-pocket production expenses

We reviewed the previous agencies proposal and could not find this information in the portion of
the proposal that is releasable.

Question 9

Number: Section II, F. Compiling the Proposal & Section IV, B.11. Confidentiality of Documents
Paragraph Number: Section Il, F. paragraph 2 and Section IV, B.11. paragraph 3

Page Number: Section Il, F. page 5 and Section IV, B.11. page 17

Text of passage being questioned:

Section Il, F. paragraph 2:

Once a contract is awarded, all information in the successful and unsuccessful RFP's bids is
considered public information. If a vendor feels that they cannot submit their proposal without
including proprietary information, they must adhere to the following procedure or their proposal
may be deemed nresponsive and will not be recommended for selection. Vendor(s) must submit
such information in a separate, sealed envelope labeled “Proprietary Information” with the RFP
number. The envelope must contain a letter from the Vendor’s legal counsel describing the
documents in the envelope, representing in good faith that the information in each document is not
“public record” as defined by 29 Del. C. § 10002(d), and briefly stating the reasons that each
document meets the said definitions.

Section IV, B.11. paragraph 3:

Vendor(s) shall not include any information in their proposal that is proprietary in nature or that
they would not want to be released to the public. Proposals must contain sufficient information to
be evaluated and a contract written without reference to any proprietary information. If a vendor
feels that they cannot submit their proposal without including proprietary information, they must
adhere to the following procedure or their proposal may be deemed unresponsive and will not be
recommended for selection. Vendor(s) must submit such information in a separate, sealed envelope
labeled “Proprietary Information” with the RFP number. The envelope must contain a letter from
the Vendor’s legal counsel describing the documents in the envelope, representing in good faith
that the information in each document is not “public record” as defined by 29 Del. C. § 10002(d),
and briefly stating the reasons that each document meets the said definitions.

Question:

Can you confirm how information/creative that we consider to be proprietary should be handled in
our response? Section Il states that all proprietary information should be pulled out of the response
in a separate, sealed envelope. However, Section IV states that the proposal must contain sufficient
information to be evaluated without the proprietary information. Our concern is that certain tasks,
like the entire Task 2, asks for our approach to executing one of your campaigns including sample
creative and sample media buy. If we were to mark those as proprietary and put them in a separate
envelope then our response would be incomplete if it is to be judged without that information.



In the past, we have been able to clearly indicate proprietary sections/pages on the Table of
Contents page and then again on the pages in question and that has been sufficient. The response
remains complete but the pages in question are easily identifiable. Would this approach be
acceptable?

The vendor’s submission to Task 2 should have all the non-proprietary information in the proposal
and include a copy of the letter from Vendor’s legal counsel describing the documents in the
envelope as a cross reference. Then the creative would be put in the envelope and used for
evaluating.

Question 10

Question with regard to the RFP for Homeland Security on page 6:

TAB 4 — ESTIMATED COST PROPOSAL

The estimated amount of the RFP of $1,600,000.00 is listed, however, the items listed only add up
to: $1,540,000.00. There is a cushion in the budget for special projects and incentive items as
needed.

Question 11
SECTION Il

PARAGRAPH G
TAB 4 - Estimated Cost Proposal
PAGE 6

Please advise as to where and in what format Bidders are to provide OHS decision-makes with
information related to proposed "Hourly Rates by Function" and "Commission Fees," upon which
Cost Proposal budget breakdowns are based.

It seems as if this information would be required from each Bidder, in order for the OHS to make a
fair "apples to apples" assessment of Bidder responses. Please advise if there is a provided Cost
and/or Budget Worksheet that we have inadvertently missed. In this task the agency is being asked
how they would allocated the budget for each campaign for media, creative, account management,
etc. Any agency fees or rates should be worked into the budget allocation. We do not provide a
worksheet.

Question 12
SECTION IV

PARAGRAPH D - Contract Terms and Conditions
PAGE 24

Please provide a sample of the Standard Written Agreement or Standard Contract, for Bidder
review. You can preview the contract boilerplate on Government Support Services website
http://gss.omb.delaware.gov/contracting/documents/agencyboilers/contract.doc
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Question 13.

Section number II.H. 1.
Paragraph number 1
Page number 8

Text of passage being questioned
“The Proposal Review Committee...”

Question

What are the names and titles of the members of the Proposal Review Committee? We do
not have confirmed members of the review committee yet however we are hoping to have
a committee of approximately 5 people of which 2 will be from OHS and 3 from other state
agencies.

Question 14.

Section number . H. 2.
Paragraph number 3

Page number 9

Text of passage being questioned
“The Committee reserves the right to:
¢ Reject any and all proposals received in response to this RFP...”

Question

Can the proposal of a Full Service Public Relations Firm Bidder be rejected prior to the
Proposal Selection Criteria being applied and if so, will a reason be provided to the Full
Service Public Relations Firm Bidder as to why the proposal was rejected prior to the
Proposal Selection Criteria being applied?

Yes if the organization was ineligible to bid because they are on the Federal Excluded
Parties List System. Refer to age 13 paragraph 6, 7, & 8 for reasons a proposal may be
rejected before the selection criteria was applied.

Question 15

Section number IV.B. 13.
Paragraph number 1

Page number 18

Text of passage being questioned
“The vendor selected shall be solely responsible for contractual performance and
management of all subcontract relationships.”



Question

Can an authorized representative of The Office of Highway Safety acting on behalf of the
State of Delaware require or dictate that the prime contractor/selected vendor contract
directly with a specific subcontractor who is chosen by an authorized representative of The
Office of Highway Safety for a specific purpose or campaign?

OHS may request the agency work with a selected vendor for a specific purpose or
campaign, the RFP allows for multiple vendors. And in the pre-bid meeting it was
mentioned that we intended to do some work with the University of Delaware, Wilmington
Blue Rocks, or other similar events and these agencies already have vendors selected that
our selected vendor will be required to coordinate campaign materials with.

Question 16

Section number IV.B. 15.
Paragraph number 1

Page number 20

Text of passage being questioned
“...as the State of Delaware may deem necessary in the best interest of the State of
Delaware.”

Question

Who are the individuals acting on behalf of the State of Delaware and can the best interest
of the State of Delaware be of a subjective nature or are there guidelines created by the
State of Delaware that require an independent and objective point of view towards serving
the greater good of the citizens of Delaware? The individuals acting on behalf of the State of
Delaware could include the Cabinet Secretary of Safety & Homeland Security, employees of
the Attorney Generals Office, and/or employees of Government Support Services.

Question 17

Section number IV.B. 17.
Paragraph number 1

Page number 20

Text of passage being questioned
“...if the agency head makes a determination that such an award is in the best interest of
the State of Delaware.”

Question

Can the determination that is made by the agency head be of a subjective nature or are
there guidelines created by the State of Delaware that require the agency head to apply an



independent and objective point of view towards serving the greater good of the citizens of
Delaware? Yes, the determination by the agency head may be of subjective nature or
follow guidelines as applicable to the situation.

Question 18

Section number IV.B. 21. a.
Paragraph number 3

Page number 20

Text of passage being questioned
“... rather the contract will be awarded to the vendor whose proposal is the most
advantageous to the State of Delaware.”

Question

Can the term “advantageous” be of a subjective nature as deemed appropriate by The
Proposal Review Committee or are there guidelines created by the State of Delaware that
require The Proposal Review Committee to apply an independent and objective point of
view towards the term “advantageous” serving the greater good of the citizens of
Delaware? Can the term “advantageous” be of a subjective nature, yes. The guidelines for
reviewing the proposals are on Page 9-10, and are comprised of both subjective and
objective components.



